
   

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Accommodation is Provided Upon Request 

 

Please Turn Off Cell Phones – Thank You 

 

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McCleary City Council 
 

AGENDA 

 

October 28, 2015 
 

o Flag Salute 

o Roll Call 

o Public Hearings -     Revenue Sources 

- Preliminary Budget 

- Property Tax Levy 

 

o Public Comment -     Dru Garson – Greater Grays Harbor Inc. Presentation 

o Executive Session   

o Minutes:  -     Approval of September 23, 2015  (Tab A) 

- Approval of October 14, 2015 (Tab B) 

o Mayor’s Comments:    -     Council Appointment 

o Staff Reports:  -     Dan Glenn, City Attorney (Tab C) 

- Todd Baun Staff Report (Tab D) 

- Staff Reports (Tab E) 

o Old Business:  -     IBEW Contract (Tab F) 

- IBEW Building Official MOU (Tab G) 

o New Business:   -     Greater Grays Harbor Service Contract (Tab H) 

- Jail Services Contract with Chehalis Tribe (Tab I) 

- FD 5 Interlocal Agreement (Tab J) 

- Itron Contract Extension (Tab K) 

- Department of Ecology Amendment No. 1 (Tab L) 

- Harbor Machine & Fabricating Settlement (Tab M) 

 

o Ordinances:  -      Property Tax Levy (Tab N) 
 

o Resolutions:  -      Jeff Catterlin Appreciation (Tab O) 
 

o Approval of Vouchers   

o Mayor/Council Comments 

o Public Comment 

o Executive Session   

o Adjournment 



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                      Wednesday, September 23, 2015

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Reed, Ator, Schiller, Catterlin and Peterson were in attendance.

ABSENT Mayor Dent was absent from the meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Brent Schiller chaired the meeting.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, George Crumb, and Chris Coker was 
present in Dan Glenn's absence.

PUBLIC HEARING None.

PUBLIC COMMENT None.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Reed to approve 

the minutes from September 9, 2015. Motion Carried 4-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a written report for the Council and Chris Coker is available, if they have 
any questions.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS None.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun provided a written report for the Council and is available, if they have any 
questions.

Todd Baun provided pictures of options for the entrance sign to McCleary for the Council and 
public to review.

Todd gave the Council a packet with two companies information that provide building official 
services on a contractual basis. The Council asked Todd to try to pursue more companies so 
they have more options to choose from.

IBEW DISCUSSION Tabled.

CCAP VENDOR AGREEMENT Coastal Community Action Program is a low-income home heating assistance program that 
helps residents during financial difficulties. They require a vendor agreement with the City, 

which does not involve any cost. It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by 

Councilmember Reed to authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement with Coastal 

Community Action Program (CCAP). Motion Carried 4-0.

TIB LED LIGHTING AWARD The City has been selected for the Relight Washington Program, which aims to reduce our 
streetlight operating costs while saving energy and renewing dated infrastructure. The City will 
benefit from lower rates after installation. The project will convert existing street lights to 

energy efficient LED street lights. It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by 

Councilmember Peterson to authorize the Mayor to sign the Relight Washington Grant 

Agreement. Motion Carried 4-0.

RESOLUTION 680, SOUL 
SOURCE WATER METERS

During the 2014 audit, the auditor recommended the City have a soul source resolution in 
place for the water meters, which are purchased through Ferguson Industries. Dan Glenn 

agreed and provided the resolution for Council's review. It was moved by Councilmember 

Catterlin, seconded by Councilmember Reed to adopt Resolution 680 in relation to 

awarding of a contract; confirming the utilizing of sole source methodology for the 

acquisition of certain equipment, and making findings. Resolution Adopted 4-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT Jack Kohler commented on the traffic from the grocery store to the cemetery. He said there 
are speeding trucks in both directions making it unsafe. He also stated he does not agree with 
getting rid of the police department. He said the sheriff's department is short-handed and the 
response time will be long.



APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 40047 - 40110 including EFT's in the 
amount of $143,414.67.

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 4-0.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:16 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, October 14, 2015 

at 7:00 pm. Motion Carried 4-0.

       
Mayor Gary Dent:                                                                        

Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins:                                                                        



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                      Wednesday,October 14, 2015

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Reed, Ator, Schiller, and Peterson were in attendance.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, George Crumb, Paul Nott and Dan 

Glenn.

PUBLIC HEARING Recessed until the next meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT None.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MINUTES APPROVED None.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a written report for the Council and is available, if they have any 

questions.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS None.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

REPORT

Todd Baun provided a written report for the Council and is available, if they have any 

questions.

PUBLIC COMMENT Councilmember Schiller asked for a moment of silence in remembrance for Councilmember 

Jeff Catterlin.

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS None.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Schiller to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:01 pm to honor the Catterlin family after the death of Councilman 

Catterlin earlier today. The next meeting will be Wednesday, October 28, 2015 at 7:00 

pm. Motion Carried 4-0.

       
Mayor Gary Dent:                                                                        

Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins:                                                                        



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 MEMORANDUM 

 

 

  TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL, City of McCleary 

 

FROM:  DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 

 

DATE:  October 23, 2015 

 

  RE:  LEGAL ACTIVITIES as of OCTOBER 28,2015 

 

 

  THIS DOCUMENT is prepared by the City Attorney for 

utilization by the City of McCleary and its elected officials 

and is subject to the attorney-client privileges to the extent 

not inconsistent with laws relating to public disclosure.   

 

  1.  CHEHALIS TRIBE CORRECTIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

STATUS: The status remains on hold.  Since receiving the call 

form their counsel that the Tribe had decided it was necessary 

to undertake a review of the costs for providing the services, 

I have received no further information.  If the Mayor and 

Council have no objection, I am going to contact their counsel 

in terms of developing an interim agreement which could be 

terminated by either party upon a short notice period. 

 

  2.  JEFF CATTERLIN: Obviously, we were all surprised 

two weeks ago to receive the information that Jeff had passed 

away.  While we all recognized the potentiality of this 

outcome as a result of his illness, I do not believe that many 

of us thought such an end would come so soon. 

 

  I have prepared a draft resolution in relation to 

Jeff and his passing for your review and consideration 

 

  3.  TELECOMMUNICATION FRANCHISES: Paul Nott, in his 

capacity of head lineman, and I have been contacted by two 

companies expressing interest in obtaining authorization to 

use the City right of way as well as certain of the poles 



 

 

maintained by Light and Power.  The intention appears to be to 

develop the capability to provide certain services.  For 

instance, one appears to be in the broadband business and a 

second in cellular service provision.   

 

  As this stage I have provided for review by Staff a 

draft agreement under which such utilization could be 

commenced.  Since Elma recently went through the same process, 

I would ask that the Council authorize Mr. Baun, in his 

capacity of DPW, and myself to discuss with these companies 

the granting of franchises to operate within the City. 

 

  I would note that I am also working on a third 

“phase”, that being an ordinance which would update this area 

in our Code.  I have searched through how other cities handle 

the area and am seeking to develop something for review which 

is less lengthy than a novel.  This will involve revisiting 

such matters as the agreement under which the telephone 

company currently utilizes the City’s poles, an agreement 

which even predates my commencement of service.  

 

  4.  HARBOR MACHINE LITIGATION: Following the 

tentative authorization provided to me, I discussed with Mr. 

Kupka the offer to resolve the matter.  I have received 

confirmation that the offer has been accepted. Thus, I would 

ask that the Council authorize both that the Mayor may sign 

the mutual release document and that the payment be authorized 

conditioned upon execution of the Release and the Order of 

Dismissal. 

 

  This will bring to a close a dispute which if it 

were to continue would not be beneficial to either party.  A 

copy of the Release will be provided to you by Ms. Collins for 

your review.  

 

  As always, this is not meant to be all inclusive.  

If you have any questions or comments, please direct them to 

me.   

 

DG/le 

















































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 

 AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE REGULAR TAX LEVY FOR 

THE YEAR 2015 FOR COLLECTION IN THE YEAR 

2016; MAKING FINDINGS; AND RESERVING 

RIGHTS.   

 

 

 R E C I T A L S: 

 

  1.  The City Council of the City of McCleary has met 

and is considering its budget for the calendar year 2016.   

  2.  At a public hearing the City Council provided 

the opportunity to receive comment from the Citizens of the 

City on the elements of revenue projections and the ad valorem 

tax levy.  Following that hearing, the Mayor and Council are 

going forward with the consideration of the City’s budget. 

  3.  Based upon the information provided by the 

Office of the County Assessor, the City’s actual annual ad 

valorem levy amount for 2015 was $_______________.  Further, 

that a 1% increase would equal $__________. 

  4.  As to new construction valuation, the 

information from the Office of the County Assessor has not 



 

 

been provided.   No property was shown as annexed during the 

period. 

  5.  The City has a population of less than 10,000 

citizens. 

  6.  The City Council of the City of McCleary, 

following the required public hearing and after duly 

considering all relevant evidence and testimony presented, has 

determined the City of McCleary will exercise its authority to 

increase the regular tax levy by the authorized one percent.  

   

  7.  The action carried forth by the Ordinance is 

based upon a Council finding there is a significant necessity 

for the property tax revenue to be increased in the next 

calendar year in order to meet the expenses and obligations of 

the City. 

  8.  In adopting this ordinance, the City is relying 

upon the accuracy and completeness of the information provided 

to it by the Office of the County Assessor. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS BY THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY: 

  SECTION I: The Council, as the governing body of the 

City of McCleary, does hereby authorize and direct an increase 



 

 

of one percent (1%) in the regular property tax levy to be 

imposed in 2015 for collection in the year 2016.  The dollar 

amount of the increase directed by this section over the 

actual levy amount from the previous year is estimated to be 

$_________, for an estimated levy in the amount of 

$_____________, representing the percentage increase of one 

percent (1%) from the previous year.  This increase is 

exclusive of additional revenue resulting from new 

construction, improvements to property, any increase in the 

value of state assessed property, any annexations which have 

occurred, or any refunds made. 

  SECTION II: This ordinance is based upon the 

information from the Office of the County Assessor as to 

amounts and calculations, as well as advice from County 

officials that this ordinance can be amended to modify the tax 

rate established herein by adoption of an appropriate 

amendatory ordinance.  The City specifically reserves the 

right to take such amendatory action up to and including the 

last day allowed. 

  SECTION III:  Upon execution by the Mayor, a 

certified copy of this Ordinance shall be provided to the 



 

 

appropriate officials of the County so as to provide for 

appropriate assessment. 

  SECTION IV:  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The 

Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 

Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and 

phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases had been 

declared invalid or unconstitutional, and if for any reason 

this Ordinance should be declared invalid or unconstitutional, 

then the original ordinance or ordinances shall be in full 

force and effect.   

  SECTION V:  This Ordinance shall take effect upon 

the fifth day following date of publication. 

  PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015, by the City 

Council of the City of McCleary, and signed in approval 

therewith this ________ day of November, 2015. 

     CITY OF McCLEARY: 

 

      

     __________________________________ 

     D. GARY DENT, Mayor 

 



 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON   ) 

      : ss. 

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY   ) 

 

  I, WENDY COLLINS, being the duly appointed Clerk-

Treasurer of the City of McCleary, do certify that I caused to 

have published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

City of McCleary a true and correct summary of Ordinance 

Number ____ and that said publication was done in the manner 

required by law.  I further certify that a true and correct  

copy of the summary of Ordinance Number _____, as it was 

published, is on file in the appropriate records of the City 

of McCleary.   

 

 

    

 _______________________________________ 

     WENDY COLLINS 

 



 

 

  SIGNED AND SWORN to before me this _______ day of 

November, 2015, by WENDY COLLINS. 

 

 

    

 _______________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF 

     WASHINGTON, Residing at: 

     My appointment expires: 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE LOSS OF 

JEFF CATTERLIN, SR. 

 

 

R E C I T A L S: 

 

  1.   A few weeks ago, Jeff Catterlin, Sr. submitted 

his resignation from his position on the City Council.  Then, 

ironically the illness he had been fighting for over a year 

took his life on the day of a regular meeting of this Council.   

  2.  The over four years he spent on the City Council 

was only a small portion of the years he has sought to serve 

the citizens of the City.  Prior to that, he served eleven 

years on the Planning Commission, several as its chair.  From 

the non-governmental side, over the last thirty-six years Jeff 

and his wife, April, also served the citizens of McCleary and 

the surrounding area through the operation of a salon  into 

which a citizen could enter looking a bit “shaggy” and leave 

looking well coiffed. 

  3.  There is no question that the recent months were 

a very challenging time for Jeff, April, and his family as the 



 

 

result of the medical issues with which he had to deal.  

However, right up to the date of his resignation, almost 

without exception those issues did not prevent him from 

continuing his involvement in dealing with the issues coming 

before the Council. 

  4.  Jeff was one who made clear his positions on 

issues affecting the City’s operations, with which others have 

not necessarily always agreed.  However, his approach was 

consistent with his indication of several years ago that his 

goals included seeking to control governmental costs and 

providing public services in what he felt would be the most 

cost efficient manner 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS BY THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY, THE MAYOR SIGNING IN 

AUTHENTICATION THEREOF: 

  SECTION I: Given the many challenges he faced in the 

last months of his life, the Council and Mayor understood 

fully Jeff’s decision to end his formal role in the City’s 

government.  However, as they intended to do at the October 

14th meeting at which they received the news of his passing, 

they wish to thank Jeff for his commitment to doing what he 



 

 

believed to be right for the City and its citizens.  May he 

now be at peace and without pain. 

  To April and the members of his family, the Council 

and Mayor offer their condolences for the loss of Jeff.  Thank 

you for the support you provided to Jeff through those very 

difficult months. 

  SECTION II: Though Jeff has now left this world, he 

and his family can be certain that he will not be forgotten 

either by those with whom he has served nor by those citizens 

who he served. 

  PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF 

________________________, 2015, by the City Council of the 

City of McCleary, and signed in authentication thereof this 

________ day of ___________________, 2015. 

     CITY OF McCLEARY: 

 

 

 

     _____________________________________ 

     D. GARY DENT, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 



 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 


